
 

 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS  

 

IOVATE HEALTH SCIENCES, INC., 

IOVATE T & P, INC., MTOR US 

TRADEMARK LTD., HHC US 

TRADEMARK LTD., LEUKIC US 

TRADEMARK LTD., and MULTI 

FORMULATIONS LTD., 

 

                    Plaintiffs, 

 

v. 

 

ALLMAX NUTRITION, INC., HEALTHY 

BODY SERVICES, LLC, and HEALTHY 

BODY SERVICES, INC.,  

 

                    Defendants. 
 

 

Civil Action No. 07-CV-12334-NMG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

 
SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT 

LEAVE TO FILE GRANTED JUNE 24, 2008 

 

Plaintiffs Iovate Health Sciences, Inc., Iovate T & P, Inc., MTOR US Trademark Ltd., 

HHC US Trademark Ltd., Leukic US Trademark Ltd., and Multi Formulations Ltd. (together 

with their respective predecessors and affiliates, “Iovate” or “Plaintiffs”), by and through 

undersigned counsel, bring this action for patent infringement, false designation of origin in 

violation of the Lanham Act, and unfair competition in violation of Massachusetts common law 

against Defendants Allmax Nutrition, Inc., Healthy Body Services, LLC, and Healthy Body 

Services, Inc. (“Defendants”), as follows: 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff Iovate Health Sciences, Inc. (“Iovate HS”) is a corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service 

Road West, Oakville, Ontario, L6M 0H4. 
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2. Plaintiff Iovate T & P, Inc. (“Iovate T & P”) is a corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service 

Road West, Oakville, Ontario, L6M 0H4. 

3. Plaintiff MTOR US Trademark Ltd. is a corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service Road West, 

Oakville, Ontario, L6M 0H4. 

4. Plaintiff HHC US Trademark Ltd. is a corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service Road West, 

Oakville, Ontario, L6M 0H4. 

5. Plaintiff Leukic US Trademark Ltd. is a corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service Road West, 

Oakville, Ontario, L6M 0H4. 

6. Plaintiff Multi Formulations Ltd. is a corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of Canada and has a principal place of business at 381 North Service Road West, Oakville, 

Ontario, L6M 0H4. 

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant, Allmax Nutrition, Inc. (“Allmax”) is a 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of Canada and has a principal place of 

business at 4576 Yonge Street, Suite 509, North York, Ontario, M2N-6N4. 

8. Upon information and belief, Defendant Healthy Body Services, LLC (“HBSL”) 

is a limited-liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, that 

conducts business in the State of Nevada, and has a resident agent in the State of Nevada, 

Resident Agents of Nevada Inc., with a principal place of business at 711 South Carson Street, 
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Carson City, Nevada 89701.  Upon information and belief, HBSL is the distributor of infringing 

products made, used and/or sold by Defendants. 

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant Healthy Body Services, Inc. (“HBSI”) is 

a corporation organized and existing under the laws Canada and has a principal place of business 

at 4576 Yonge Street, Suite 509, North York, Ontario, M2N-6N4.  Upon information and belief, 

Defendant HBSI is the manufacturer of the infringing products made, used, and/or sold by or for 

the Defendants.  Upon information and belief, HBSI is the owner and operator of the domain 

www.allmaxnutrition.com, which markets and sells the infringing products made, used, and/or 

sold by or for Defendants. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

10. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the 

United States, Title 35 of the United States Code; for violations of the Trademark Act of 1946 as 

amended (the “Lanham Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq.; and for other violations of applicable 

Massachusetts common and statutory law. 

11. The Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 

(i) 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332 and 1338(a) for claims arising from the Lanham Act and the patent 

laws of the United States, (ii) § 1338(b) for claims arising from the common law, and 

(iii) principles of supplemental jurisdiction. 

12. The Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants because: (i) the 

Defendants knowingly transact business in this Commonwealth and district; (ii) the Defendants 

advertise and market their infringing goods within this jurisdiction; and (iii) the Defendants’ 

conduct outside this jurisdiction is causing injury in this forum. 

http://www.allmaxnutrition.com/
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13. Venue is proper in this Court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1391(b), 1391(d) 

and 1400, in that a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred in this district, 

and the Defendants transact business in this district. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

14. For more than a decade, Iovate has marketed and sold the highest quality food 

supplements and nutritional products throughout the United States under, among others, its 

“Muscle-Tech” brand. 

15. Iovate revolutionized the industry by bringing to the widespread public products 

originally formulated and designed for professional body builders and other elite athletes.  In 

particular, Iovate’s trademarked “Hydroxycut,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” products, as well as 

Iovate’s “Hydroxycut Hardcore” product, have been spectacularly popular with recreational 

athletes and health-conscious individuals alike.  With market leading sales and name recognition, 

Iovate’s “Muscle-Tech” brand of products, which includes Iovate’s trademarked “Anator-P70” 

product and Iovate’s “Hydroxycut Hardcore” product, as well as Iovate’s trademarked 

“Hydroxycut” product and Iovate’s “Leukic” product, have become the choice of consumers 

seeking the highest quality health supplements available. 

16. Long after Plaintiffs had established their valuable marks, and long after Plaintiffs 

had established themselves as the leading choice of health-conscious consumers, Defendants 

began a campaign to unlawfully appropriate Plaintiffs’ goodwill and valuable intellectual 

property assets. 

17. Defendants perpetrated this campaign by, inter alia, infringing Plaintiffs’ patents, 

marketing and packaging products which are confusingly similar to Plaintiffs’ products, and by 

hiring at least one former employee of Plaintiffs.  That former employee, Ryan Foley (“Foley”), 
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was employed by Plaintiffs and possessed intimate knowledge of Plaintiffs’ products, product 

formulations, branding and marketing efforts and strategies and other valuable and proprietary 

business information.  Shortly after Defendants hired Foley, on information and belief, they, with 

Foley’s assistance, began the campaign referenced above.  Foley is even pictured on the 

packaging material of Defendants’ infringing “Rapidcuts Hardcore” product. 

18. Further, on information and belief, Defendants, or those acting under Defendants’ 

direction or control, have made various injurious and untruthful statements in Defendants’ 

product labeling, advertisements, and marketing efforts about Plaintiffs’ products, including, 

inter alia, that Plaintiffs’ products contain predominantly “filler” instead of active ingredients, or 

are otherwise inferior to products marketed and sold by Defendants. 

19. To protect the goodwill that Plaintiffs have established in their product name and 

branding, and their “Hydroxycut,” “Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” marks, 

Plaintiffs bring this action for trademark infringement and false designation of origin under the 

Federal Trademark (Lanham) Act, and unfair competition under Massachusetts common law. 

20. Plaintiffs seek also to protect their valuable inventions by bringing this action 

under the patent laws of the United States.  Plaintiffs seek injunctive relief, an accounting, 

damages and recovery of their costs and attorneys’ fees. 

THE IOVATE PATENTS 

21. On October 26, 1999, United States Patent No. 5,973,199 (“the '199 Patent”), 

titled “Hydrosoluble Organic Salts of Creatine,” was duly and legally issued by the United States 

Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the '199 Patent is attached as Exhibit A 

of this Complaint. 

22. Iovate HS is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the '199 Patent. 
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23. On October 19, 1999, United States Patent No. 5,968,900 (“the '900 Patent”), 

titled “Increasing Creatine and Glycogen Concentration in Muscle,” was duly issued by the 

United States Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the '900 Patent is 

attached as Exhibit B of this Complaint. 

24. Iovate T & P is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the '900 Patent.   

25. On August 21, 2001, United States Patent No. 6,277,396 (“the '396 Patent”), titled 

“Dietary Supplement Containing a Thermogenic Substance and an Adrenal Support Substance,” 

was duly issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of 

the '396 Patent is attached as Exhibit C of this Complaint. 

26. Iovate T & P is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the '396 Patent. 

27. On February 17, 1998, United States Patent No. 5,719,119 (“the '119 Patent”), 

titled “Parenteral Nutrition Therapy with Amino Acids,” was duly issued by the United States 

Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the '119 Patent is attached as Exhibit D 

of this Complaint. 

28. Multi Formulations Ltd. is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the 

'119 Patent. 

29. On November 9, 2004, United States Patent No. 6,814,986 (“the '986 Patent”), 

titled “Composition for Treating Obesity and Esthetic Treatment Process,” was duly issued by 

the United States Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the '986 Patent is 

attached as Exhibit E of this Complaint. 

30. Multi Formulations Ltd. is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the 

'986 Patent. 
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31. On December 14, 2004, United States Patent No. 6,830,765 (“the '765 Patent”), 

titled “Green Tea Extract for Treating Obesity,” was duly issued by the United States Patent and 

Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the '765 Patent is attached as Exhibit F of this 

Complaint. 

32. Multi Formulations Ltd. is the owner of all rights, title and interest in and to the 

'765 Patent. 

33. Upon information and belief, Defendants have made, used, offered for sale, sold 

and/or imported certain nutritional supplements products, including, without limitation, the 

products distributed by Allmax under the trade names “Rapidcuts Hardcore,” “Rapidcuts 

Femme,” “Krush 4,” “NOK 2,” “Quickmass,” “Leutor 70,” “R-ALA,” and “Razor8” throughout 

the United States and in this judicial district. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Infringement of the '199 Patent) 

 

34. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-33 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

35. Upon information and belief, certain products made, used, sold and offered for 

sale by Defendants, including, without limitation, the product(s) distributed by the Defendants 

under the trade names “NOK 2” and “Quickmass” incorporate or embody the inventions claimed 

in the '199 Patent. 

36. By their actions, Defendants have infringed, and are infringing, one or more of the 

claims of the '199 Patent. 

37. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '199 Patent. 

38. Defendants’ infringing conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 
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39. As a result of Defendants’ acts of infringement, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Infringement of the '900 Patent) 

 

40. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-39 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

41. Upon information and belief, certain products made, used, sold and offered for 

sale by Defendants, including, without limitation, the products distributed by Defendants under 

the trade names “Krush 4” and “Quickmass” incorporate or embody the inventions claimed in 

the '900 Patent. 

42. By their actions, Defendants have infringed, and are infringing, one or more of the 

claims of the '900 Patent. 

43. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '900 Patent. 

44. Defendants’ infringing conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 

45. As a result of Defendants’ acts of infringement, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Infringement of the '396 Patent) 

 
46. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-45 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

47. Upon information and belief, certain products made, used, sold and offered for 

sale by Defendants, including, without limitation, the products distributed by Defendants under 
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the trade names “Rapidcuts Hardcore” and “Rapidcuts Femme,” incorporate or embody the 

inventions claimed in the '396 Patent. 

48. By their actions, Defendants have infringed, and are infringing, one or more of the 

claims of the '396 Patent. 

49. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '396 Patent. 

50. Defendants’ infringing conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 

51. As a result of Defendants’ acts of infringement, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Infringement of the '119 Patent) 

 

52. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-51 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

53. Upon information and belief, certain products made, used, sold and offered for 

sale by Defendants, including, without limitation, the products distributed by Defendants under 

the trade name “NOK 2,” incorporate or embody the inventions claimed in the '119 Patent. 

54. By their actions, Defendants have infringed, and are infringing, one or more of the 

claims of the '119 Patent. 

55. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '119 Patent. 

56. Defendants’ infringing conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 

57. As a result of Defendants’ acts of infringement, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Infringement of the '986 Patent) 

 

58. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-57 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

59. Upon information and belief, certain products made, used, sold and offered for 

sale by Defendants, including, without limitation, the products distributed by Defendants under 

the trade names “Rapidcuts Hardcore,” “Rapidcuts Femme,” and “Razor8,” incorporate or 

embody the inventions claimed in the '986 Patent. 

60. By their actions, upon information and belief, Defendants have infringed, and are 

infringing, one or more of the claims of the '986 Patent. 

61. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '986 Patent. 

62. Defendants’ infringing conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 

63. As a result of Defendants’ acts of infringement, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Inducement of Infringement of the '765 Patent) 
 

64. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-63 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

65. Upon information and belief, Defendants have actively induced others to infringe 

the claims of the '765 Patent through their promotion and marketing of “Rapidcuts Hardcore,” 

“Rapidcuts Femme,” and “Razor8.” 

66. Defendants’ conduct has been and continues to be unlawful and willful. 
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67. As a result of Defendants’ acts of inducement of infringement, Plaintiffs have 

suffered and will continue to suffer damages in an amount to be proved at trial. 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(False Designation of Origin in Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A)) 

 
68. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-67 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein.   

69. This claim is for false designation of origin that is likely to cause confusion, 

mistake, and deception as to the affiliation, connection, or association of Defendants’ products 

with Plaintiffs’ products in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

1125(a)(1)(A). 

70. Plaintiffs manufacture, market and sell a range of nutritional supplement products, 

including, but not limited to, products known by the trade-names “Hydroxycut,” “Hydroxycut 

Hardcore,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic.” 

71. Plaintiffs have used the “Hydroxycut” trade-name and -mark since at least 1998, 

and obtained Federal trademark registration for “Hydroxycut” on August 4, 1998 (registration 

number 2178046).  Plaintiffs have used the “Anator-P70” trade-name and -mark since at least 

2006, and obtained Federal trademark registration for “Anator-P70” on October 30, 2007 

(registration number 3326676).  Plaintiffs have used the “Leukic” trade-name and -mark since at 

least 2005, and obtained Federal trademark registration for “Leukic” on November 13, 2007 

(registration number 3336514). 

72. Plaintiffs’ products generally, and “Hydroxycut,” “Hydroxycut Hardcore,” 

“Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” in particular, are widely-recognized for their superior quality, and 

enjoy substantial popularity with professional body builders, elite athletes, and fitness-conscious 

consumers alike. 
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73. As a result of Plaintiffs’ exclusive and extensive use of “Hydroxycut,” 

“Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” in connection with its nutritional 

supplements products and merchandise, those marks have become exclusively associated with 

Plaintiffs by consumers.  Plaintiffs have developed extensive goodwill in their brand, and in their 

“Hydroxycut,” “Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” products through years of 

substantial effort and investment, including expending significant resources to develop, advertise 

and promote their products’ distinctive look and feel. 

74. Plaintiffs advertise and promote their products in national fitness publications 

such as Flex, MuscleMag, and Muscular Development.  Plaintiffs also advertise their products 

nationally via the Internet, and expend considerable effort and expense in graphic art associated 

with product packaging and point-of-purchase display. 

75. Plaintiffs’ efforts have generated goodwill and have created a legally cognizable 

interest in the products, including the unique and distinctive name of their products, as well as 

the distinctive and well-known presentation of the products in the marketplace, through product 

packaging, marketing, and advertising. 

76. Plaintiffs have defended this goodwill and interest in the distinctive look and feel 

of their products. 

77. Plaintiffs’ mark, when used on or in connection with nutritional supplements 

products, is identified and associated in consumers’ minds exclusively with Plaintiffs.  Plaintiffs’ 

mark is strong, highly distinctive of Plaintiffs, and entitled to the broadest scope of protection. 

78. Defendants market and sell a range of nutritional supplements targeted to health 

conscious consumers.  On information and belief, Defendants’ products, generally, are targeted 
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to the precise class of consumers as Plaintiffs’ products, and are sold through virtually the same 

channels of sale, and are advertised in the same or similar fitness publications. 

79. Defendants are not affiliated with Plaintiffs, and have never been licensed or 

otherwise authorized by Plaintiffs to use Plaintiffs’ marks, or to appropriate the goodwill 

associated with Plaintiffs’ product trade-names, or the distinctive look and feel of Plaintiffs’ 

products, product packaging or advertising. 

80. The Defendants market and sell two products called “Rapidcuts Hardcore” and 

“Leutor 70.”  Upon information and belief, Defendants intended to cause customer confusion 

and are causing customer confusion by, among other things:  (1) naming one of their products 

“Rapidcuts Hardcore,” which is substantially similar in name, look and feel to Plaintiffs’ leading 

“Hydroxycut Hardcore” product and which purports to have the same or similar benefits; 

(2) naming one of their products “Leutor 70,” which is substantially similar in name, look and 

feel to Plaintiffs’ leading “Leukic” and “Anator-P70” products and which purports to have the 

same or similar benefits; and (3) packaging and marketing their “Rapidcuts Hardcore” product 

with an insignia nearly indistinguishable from that utilized by Plaintiffs in their “MD” product 

line. 

81. The Plaintiffs have been and will continue to suffer damage to the extent that 

consumers mistakenly associate Defendants’ products with those of the Plaintiffs.  For example, 

consumers who are dissatisfied with Defendants’ products, sold under the confusingly similar 

packaging and product names “Rapidcuts Hardcore” and “Leutor 70,” likely will displace that 

dissatisfaction on the Plaintiffs.  The potential for Defendants’ infringing “Rapidcuts Hardcore” 

and “Leutor 70” products to reflect negatively on Plaintiffs’ “Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Leukic,” 
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and “Anator-P70” products threatens to irreparably harm the valuable goodwill Plaintiffs have 

built in their trade names over the years. 

82. The goodwill that Plaintiffs have built up in their product names, branding, and 

distinctive look and feel through years of substantial investment and effort is put at risk by virtue 

of Defendants’ commercial misappropriation of Plaintiffs’ mark for goods over which Plaintiffs 

have no control.  As a result, Plaintiffs’ valuable reputation and the reputation of their 

“Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Anator-P70,” and “Leukic” products, and the valuable reputation of 

their brand may be permanently damaged. 

83. On information and belief, Defendants, by using a similar look and feel in their 

product packaging, and graphics and marketing materials, intended to cause customer confusion 

and are causing customer confusion. 

84. On information and belief, Defendants’ use of the confusingly similar “Rapidcuts 

Hardcore” and “Leutor 70” product names and packaging is a deliberate attempt to:  (1) trade on 

the goodwill that Plaintiffs have established in their “Hydroxycut Hardcore,” “Leukic,” and 

“Anator-P70” products and brand, and (2) create a false impression as to the source and 

sponsorship of Defendants’ products, or (3) otherwise pass off their products as being authorized 

or endorsed by Plaintiffs. 

85. Defendants’ activities complained of herein constitute false designation of origin 

or false description or representation that Defendants’ products originate from, or are offered, 

sponsored, authorized, licensed by or otherwise somehow connected with Plaintiffs.  Defendants’ 

conduct is thereby likely to cause confusion, mistake, and deception as to the affiliation, 

connection, or association under Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A). 
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86. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in this illegal conduct 

willfully, and deliberately, with the intent to appropriate the goodwill developed by Plaintiffs in 

their products. 

87. Plaintiffs have been and will continue to be damaged by Defendants’ acts. 

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Unfair Competition in Violation of Massachusetts Common Law)  

 

88. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1-87 of this 

Complaint as if set forth at length and in full herein. 

89. Defendants’ activities complained of herein constitute unfair competition under 

Massachusetts Common Law. 

90. Defendants engaged in this illegal conduct in bad faith, willfully, deliberately and 

intentionally. 

91. Defendants’ actions have caused and will continue to cause substantial damage to 

Plaintiffs and/or irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for entry of judgment against Defendant as follows: 

A. that Defendants infringe the '199, '900, '396, '119, and '986 Patents; 

B. that Defendants have actively induced others to infringe the '199, '900, '396, '119, 

'986, and '765 Patents; 

C. that Defendants’ infringement and inducement of infringement of the '199, '900, 

'396, '119, '986, and '765 Patents is willful; 
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D. that Defendants, their officers, directors, affiliates, agents, servants, employees 

and attorneys, and all those persons in privity or in concert with any of them, be preliminarily 

and permanently enjoined from infringement of the '199, '900, '396, '119, '986, and '765 Patents; 

E. that Plaintiffs be awarded their damages for infringement of the '199, '900, '396, 

'119, '986, and '765 Patents, and that the damages be trebled; 

F. that this case be declared to be exceptional in favor of Plaintiffs under 35 U.S.C. § 

285, and that Plaintiffs be awarded their costs, attorneys’ fees, and other expenses incurred in 

connection with this action; 

G. that Defendants have violated 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a); 

H. that Defendants’ violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) is willful; 

I. that Defendants, their officers, directors, affiliates, agents, servants, employees 

and attorneys, and all those persons in privity or in concert with any of them, be preliminarily 

and permanently enjoined from further violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a); 

J. that the injunction expressly enjoins Defendants, their officers, directors, 

affiliates, agents, servants, employees and attorneys, and all those persons in privity or in concert 

with any of them from using any false designation or origin or false description (including, 

without limitation, any colors, letters or symbols), or performing any act, which can, or is likely 

to, lead members of the trade or public to believe that any product or service rendered, offered 

for sale, advertised or promoted by Defendants is in any way produced, sponsored, licensed or 

approved by, or connected or affiliated or associated with Plaintiffs; 

K. that the injunction orders Defendants and their successors and assigns to deliver 

up to the Court for destruction all merchandise, labels, signs, prints, packages, receptacles, 

advertisements and promotional materials bearing Plaintiffs’ distinctive mark, or any mark 
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confusingly similar to that mark, and all plates, molds, matrices and other means of making the 

same; 

L. that the injunction orders that Defendants, in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1116, 

file with the Court and serve on the Plaintiffs, within thirty days after service on Defendants of 

any injunction issued in this action, a report in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and 

form in which Defendants have complied with the injunction; 

M. that Plaintiffs be awarded their damages for Defendants’ violation of 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1125(a) and that the damages be trebled; 

N. that Plaintiffs be awarded costs, attorneys’ fees and other expenses incurred in 

connection with such violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a); 

O. that Defendants be directed to account for and pay over to Plaintiffs the profits, 

gains, and advantages obtained or derived by Defendants from their acts of infringement of 

Plaintiffs’ mark, and awarding Plaintiffs treble that amount pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117; 

P. that Defendants have violated Massachusetts’ common and statutory law by 

engaging in unfair competition;  

Q. that Plaintiffs be awarded compensatory, actual, punitive and exemplary damages 

and attorneys’ fees and costs of suit stemming from Defendants’ violations of Massachusetts 

law; and 

R. that Plaintiffs be awarded such other and further relief as may be appropriate. 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury. 

Dated:  June 25, 2008 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ Brian C. Barry    

Eric J. Marandett (BBO# 561730) 

Paul D. Popeo (BBO# 567727) 

Brian C. Barry (BBO# 661518) 

Meghan L. Rhatigan (BBO# 663039) 

CHOATE HALL & STEWART LLP 

Two International Place 

Boston, MA 02110  

Tel:  (617) 248-5000  

Fax:  (617) 248-4000 

emarandett@choate.com 

ppopeo@choate.com 
bbarry@choate.com 
mrhatigan@choate.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 

 

 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
I hereby certify that on the date indicated below I caused a copy of the foregoing motion to be 
filed with the Court’s ECF filing system, which will cause an electronic notice to be sent to 
counsel of record. 
 
 
Dated:  June 25, 2008 /s/ Brian C. Barry   
        

mailto:emarandett@choate.com
mailto:ppopeo@choate.com
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